# **Public Document Pack**

25 May 2018 Our Ref Hitchin Committee 05.06.18

Your Ref.

Contact. Hilary Dineen Direct Dial. (01462) 474353

Email. hilary.dineen@north-herts.gov.uk

To: Members of the Committee:

Councillor Ian Albert (Chairman), Councillor Clare Billing (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Judi Billing, Councillor Val Bryant, Councillor Paul Clark, Councillor Sam Collins, Councillor Elizabeth Dennis-Harburg, Councillor Nicola Harris, Councillor Simon Harwood, Councillor Mike Hughson, Councillor Bernard Lovewell, Councillor Martin Stears-Handscomb and Councillor Richard Thake

You are invited to attend a

# MEETING OF THE HITCHIN COMMITTEE

to be held in the

# PETER MORRISON HALL, BENSLOW MUSIC SCHOOL, BENSLOW LANE, HITCHIN

On

**TUESDAY, 5 JUNE, 2018 AT 7.30 PM** 

Yours sincerely,

David Scholes
Chief Executive

# Agenda <u>Part I</u>

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
 MINUTES - 6 MARCH 2018
 To take as read and approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting of this Committee held on the 6 March 2018.
 MINUTES - 17 MAY 2018
 To take as read and approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting of 17 - 18)

#### 4. NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS

this Committee held on the 17 May 2018.

Members should notify the Chairman of other business which they wish to be discussed by the Committee at the end of the business set out in the agenda. They must state the circumstances which they consider justify the business being considered as a matter of urgency.

The Chairman will decide whether any item(s) raised will be considered.

#### 5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Members are reminded that any declarations of interest in respect of any business set out in the agenda, should be declared as either a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Declarable Interest and are required to notify the Chairman of the nature of any interest declared at the commencement of the relevant item on the agenda. Members declaring a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest must withdraw from the meeting for the duration of the item. Members declaring a Declarable Interest, wished to exercise a 'Councillor Speaking Right', must declare this at the same time as the interest, move to the public area before speaking to the item and then must leave the room before the debate and vote.

#### 6. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

To receive petitions and presentations from members of the public including:

- 1. 11th Hitchin (Holy Saviour) Guides;
- 2. British Schools Museum;
- Headway;
- 4. Hitchin Christian Centre;
- 5. JOCA Hitchin;
- 6. Rhythms Of The World:
- 7. Hitchin Rail Commuters.

# 7. WASTE AND RECYCLING CONTRACT

The Executive Member for Waste, Recycling and Environment to be available to answer questions from Members of the Hitchin Committee regarding the Waste Contract.

#### 8. GRANTS AND COMMUNITY UPDATE

REPORT OF THE COMMUNITIES MANAGER

(Pages 19 - 30)

To update the Committee on the activities and actions of the Communities Officer, to advise on the current expenditure and balances of the delegated budgets and to consider applications for grant funding.

# 9. HITCHIN BID MANAGER

To receive an oral presentation from the Hitchin BID Manager.

# 10. ISSUES AND EVENTS IN THE HITCHIN AREA

To discuss any issues and events in the Hitchin Aea.

#### 11. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AT FUTURE MEETINGS

To receive suggestions for Items to be discussed at future meetings from Members of the Committee

# 12. WARD MATTERS AND OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS - MEMBERS' REPORTS

To receive any oral reports from Members regarding Ward matters and Outside Organisations.



#### NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

#### **HITCHIN COMMITTEE**

# MEETING HELD IN THE WESTMILL COMMUNITY CENTRE, JOHN BARKER PLACE, HITCHIN, HERTS ON TUESDAY, 6TH MARCH, 2018 AT 7.30 PM

#### **MINUTES**

Present: Councillors Councillor Ian Albert (Vice-Chairman), Judi Billing,

Paul Clark, Elizabeth Dennis, Simon Harwood, Bernard Lovewell, Alan Millard, Ray Shakespeare-Smith, Adrian Smith, Martin Stears-

Handscomb and Richard Thake

In Attendance:

Simon Ellis (Development and Conservation Manager), Claire Morgan (Communities Officer), Milan Johnston (Communities Assistant) and

Hilary Dineen (Committee and Member Services Officer)

Also Present:

At the start of the meeting and 10 members of the public.

#### 60 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Nicola Harris (Chairman) and Frank Radcliffe.

#### 61 MINUTES - 5 DECEMBER 2017

**RESOLVED:** That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on 5 December 2017 be approved as a true record of the proceedings and be signed by the Chairman.

#### 62 NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS

No other business had been notified.

#### 63 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

- (1) The Vice-Chairman thanked all who had attended Town Talk;
- (2) The Vice-Chairman welcomed all present at the meeting, particularly those who had attended to give a presentation;
- (3) The Vice-Chairman informed those present that, in accordance with Council Policy the meeting would be audio recorded;
- (4) The Vice-Chairman drew attention to the item on the agenda front pages regarding Declarations of Interest and reminded Members that, in line with the Code of Conduct, any Declarations of Interest needed to be declared immediately prior to the item in question.

#### 64 HERTFORDSHIRE CONSTABULARY

Sergeant Steve Oliphant, Hertfordshire Constabulary thanked the Vice-Chairman for the invitation to address the Committee.

Sergeant Oliphant advised that the statistics and other information covered the Hitchin area.

#### **Statistics**

#### All Crime

• There had been an increase in reports of 22.5 percent (409 reports).

#### Anti-Social Behaviour

There had been an increase in reports of 0.02 percent.

#### **Burglary Dwelling**

114 reports.

#### **Burglary Non-Dwelling**

• 77 Reports

# Work Undertaken

- It had been a busy year for the Police;
- The main focus of the year had been to reduce burglaries, both dwelling and nondwelling:
- There had been an increase in Burglary Dwelling in Oughton Ward, an operation was set up and an offender was caught;
- They had also focussed on criminal damage to motor vehicles;
- There had been an increase in wing mirror damage in Bearton Ward, an operation was set up and two young offenders were caught and were being processed though the court system;
- Over Christmas and New Year there had been an increase in the theft of motor vehicles, particularly motor scooters, an operation was set up and the main offender was identified and charged with 16 offences;
- Two people had been arrested and two further people were being monitored in connection with the Zen graffiti tag seen in Hitchin.

# Licensing

The Police worked closely with NHDC Licensing and Community Safety Officers to take positive action regarding any breaches of licensing conditions or problems arising at licensed premises, with the aim that everybody could enjoy the nightlife in Hitchin.

#### **Communication**

- Communication with and support of the public was important;
- Hertfordshire Constabulary chose not to engage directly with people or groups through individual sites on Facebook;
- The OWL system was very useful and people were encouraged to sign up to it.

Members were pleased that the Zen graffiti offenders had been identified and commented that the work by NHDC to remove the graffiti was ongoing.

They commented that the work being undertaken by the Police to encourage use of the OWL network had been very positively received.

Sergeant Oliphant advised that the OWL network was an important communication tool, which Officers looked at and fed into on a regular basis and that it supported the Safer Neighbourhood Teams.

The Safer Streets campaign was about visiting homes, providing advice on security and encouraging sign up to the OWL system.

Councillor Lovewell informed Members that Herts County Council would shortly be starting an initiative in conjunction with District Councils regarding the crime of fly-tipping.

Fly-tipping was blight on the countryside and cost tax payers a lot of money to clear up.

Recently there had been a number of high profile successful prosecutions for fly-tipping and NHDC worked closely with the Police regarding this crime.

A Member reminded the Committee that graffiti had been a major problem some 10 - 15 years ago and since that time a great deal of work had been undertaken in respect of antisocial behaviour. This spate of graffiti was a resurgence that was being dealt with.

A Member reported that there was a traffic issue at Sun Street where there was a no right turn sign, which was regularly ignored and asked that the Police look into this.

Members commented that the OWL network was very useful and provided helpful information.

Members noted that crime had increased and queried what could be done to address this and asked whether anything could be done regarding the issue of speeding in Hitchin.

Sergeant Oliphant advised that the increase in crime numbers did not overly concern him, although it was the Police's job to try to reduce the amount of crime and help to keep neighbourhoods and residents safe.

Tackling crime could only happen in partnership with residents and everyone involved had to take on this responsibility.

He was concerned about and understood the impact that crime had on people.

The OWL system was a great help to the Police and to local residents and he encouraged people to sign up to the system and to provide any information, whether they thought it relevant or not, which would support them to target and therefore reduce crime.

The biggest threat was criminals who travelled into the County to undertake their crime.

In respect of speeding, a number of County Councillors had provided funding from their Locality Budgets to provide speed information signs with smiley faces and these had had a positive impact.

His team would do whatever they could to reduce speeding, however there were limited resources and officers had to be placed to deal with the biggest risks.

Sergeant Oliphant acknowledged the risks associated with speeding, however the statistics did not demonstrate that this was an increasing problem and there were not in fact that many serious collisions in the Hitchin Urban area.

Members acknowledged that the raw statistics provided were not always helpful as the Home Office kept changing the method of reporting crime which had resulted in an on-paper increase in the volume of crime recorded. Until the reporting system settled down, it would be difficult to make comparisons year on year

They also acknowledged that Hertfordshire was a very safe place to live and that the percentage increases reported were from a low starting point.

Members asked for clarification regarding the additional responsibilities that had been placed on the local Police team.

Sergeant Oliphant advised that there were many reasons for the increase in recorded crime which included that there was an increased confidence in the Police resulting in people being more willing to report crime and the changes in the way that the Police recorded crime,

In terms of responsibilities, they had been successful in tackling issues such as anti-social behaviour and there were now several different methods for people to report crime, these positive developments had resulted in an increase in the amount reported.

The Constabulary were asked to support many other activities and agencies, which resulted in that time not being available in the local area

The Vice-Chairman thanked the Hertfordshire Constabulary for their work in the Hitchin area and Sergeant Oliphant particularly, for his presentation.

#### 65 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - HITCHIN MARKETS

Following the presentation but before any debate Councillor Judi Billing declared a declarable Interest as she was a Director of Hitchin Initiative, which was the sole shareholder of Hitchin Markets.

Following the presentation but before any debate Councillor Ray Shakespeare-Smith declared a declarable Interest as he was a member of Hitchin Initiative, which was the sole shareholder of Hitchin Markets.

Following the presentation but before any debate Councillor Richard Thake declared a declarable Interest as he was a member of Hitchin Initiative, which was the sole shareholder of Hitchin Markets.

Mr John Simmonds, Chairman, Hitchin Markets Limited, thanked the Vice-Chairman for the opportunity to address the Committee and gave a verbal presentation regarding Hitchin Market.

Mr Simmonds informed the Committee that Hitchin Markets Limited, a social enterprise company, had run Hitchin Market on behalf of the Council since 2008.

He was making the presentation this evening in response to the announcement by NHDC that there were plans to regenerate Churchgate Shopping Centre.

The Churchgate Board was made up of volunteers and Hitchin Market Limited welcomed the idea of a refreshed market and shopping centre.

Running the Market was tough and had not been helped over the last ten years but they had, by local benchmarking, managed to run it successfully.

The Market consists of between 90 and 120 stalls on 4 days of each week.

The indicative NHDC plan relocated the market so that there was a 50 yard gap, which blocked the market in to half the space it was currently using and it put the market 50 yards away from the principle shopping area.

This was the principle objection as the market and the Town Centre were good for each other.

The indicative plan also showed a very limited area for fixed stalls. If the market was to continue in any similar form, it would therefore be necessary to put up around 100 demountable stalls. This was not as easy as it sounded as people had to turn up at 4.30 am to put the stalls up and return in the evening to take them down again.

There were huge running costs involved with looking after and erecting/dismantling demountable stalls amounting to approximately £60,000 per year. One of the reasons for the financial success of Hitchin Markets Limited was the number of fixed stalls that were reliable and did not require personnel to erect and dismantle them.

There was a proposal that the operating contract for Hitchin Markets Limited to expire in July and the operation of Hitchin market be taken back in-house by NHDC during the 2-3 year development period.

Mr Simmonds did not believe that NHDC had the experience to run the market. Hitchin Market Corporate Board had the experience of three experienced traders as well as the experience of Hitchin Initiative, which resulted last year in a surplus profit being made.

This required exceptionally sensitive management as markets were fragile and could easily melt away and be lost. Too many markets had been forced to close including Royston, Stevenage, Letchworth, Hemel Hempstead, Hatfield and Watford.

Hitchin Markets Limited had worked in close partnership with NHDC for 10 years and suggested that the operating contract be extended on a rolling basis.

Their aim was to have a successful market and they were more than willing to work closely and well with NHDC to this end.

Members queried whether Hitchin Markets Limited would wish to continue to manage the market under any circumstances, particularly in light of the concerns he had raised regarding the indicative plans.

Mr Simmonds acknowledged that the market would have to operate within any constraints placed upon it and that Hitchin Markets Limited would be more than willing to try to make it run within those constraints.

A Member reminded the Committee that at the Council meeting, where this was discussed, the professionalism of the current management was discussed as was the suggestion of a rolling contract for Hitchin Markets Limited.

Members commented that the erection and dismantling of the demountable stalls was not a quiet operation and that there were many more residents living within the area of the market and queried whether Hitchin Markets Limited had any concerns regarding this aspect.

Mr Simmonds advised that noise had been a concern when considering previous suggestions regarding the placement of the market, particularly regarding the proposal to spread the market around the Town. The current proposal caused less of a concern regarding noise, but it had to be noted that this was a noisy operation as well as being hard work.

Members queried whether Hitchin Markets Limited had formerly approached the Council with their suggestion of a rolling contract.

Mr Simmonds advised that they had not made any formal approaches, but had received an invitation from the Council to make a formal written representation and he would also be making a representation to Cabinet when it is discussed.

The Vice-Chairman thanked Mr Simmonds for his presentation.

#### 66 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - PARKING AT THE LEISURE CENTRE

Mr Colin Dunham thanked the Vice-Chairman for the opportunity to address the Committee and gave a verbal presentation regarding parking at the Leisure Centre.

Mr Dunham informed Members that in 2014/15 the Portfolio Holder for Leisure advised that patrons of the Leisure entre would be able to park in an NHDC car park free of charge.

He advised that no publicity had been given to this concession and there was no information about it on the NHDC website and as far as he could ascertain, there had been no publicity as, if used, it would destroy the sale of season tickets.

Mr Dunham queried why there had been no publicity regarding the parking alternatives.

Members suggested that Mr Dunham should direct his question to the Executive Member for Leisure who was responsible for the Leisure Centre and its car park.

The Vice-Chairman thanked Mr Dunham for his presentation.

**RESOLVED:** That the Executive Member for Leisure be asked to advise this Committee how the parking arrangements for the Leisure Centre in Hitchin were publicised and whether there were plans to further publicise those parking arrangements.

**REASON FOR DECISION:** To ensure that the parking arrangements for the Leisure Centre in Hitchin are publicised as fully as possible.

#### 67 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - TILEHOUSE COUNSELLING

The Vice - Chairman advised that Sue Barnes, Tilehouse Counselling, had broken her ankle and was unable to attend this meeting.

#### 68 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - TRIANGLE COMMUNITY GARDEN

Ms Liz McElroy, Project Manager, Ms Vicky Wire and Ms Yolande Worrall, Triangle Community Garden, thanked the Vice-Chairman for the opportunity to address the Committee and gave a verbal presentation regarding their grant application.

Ms McElroy informed Members that the Triangle Community Garden had been based at Ransoms Recreation Ground since 2000.

It was a registered charity that provided social therapeutic horticultural activities for adults with learning disabilities and supported individuals to lead more healthy lifestyles by learning about nutrition, cookery, growing fruit and vegetables and taking exercise.

Through reviews and talking to service users, it became apparent that a lot of the service uses had some IT skills but did not get the opportunity to use the skills they had learnt.

Ransoms Pavilion was last decorated in 2010 and 8 years if wear and tear had taken its toll. It was also an opportunity to add some colour to the pavilion walls to help those who were visually impaired.

The equipment would enable the participants to undertake some research for themselves regarding recipes etc and staff and volunteer could also use the equipment for training purposes.

The plan was to purchase a TV monitor that would be placed on a wall and be in a built-in cupboard for security

The Triangle Community Garden was requesting grant funding of £2,850 toward the purchase of IT equipment, a mobile phone and internal decoration and wi-fi for Ransom Pavilion that would cost a total of £4,580.

These purchases and improvements would extend the opportunities available to the service users.

Ms Wire informed Members that Ransoms Pavilion was a community resource that acted as a very small community centre which was available for hire for meetings and presentations. Having wi-fi and a monitor would enable this community resource to be available and useful to more people.

Two long-term hirers of the Pavilion would be moving out shortly, therefore, if anyone knew of any groups that would like to hire the Pavilion, please contact them.

Ms Worrall informed Members that she supported a lady in her mid 30s who had autism and severe dyslexia meaning that she had real difficulty reading and writing. This lady, who could manage to write he name, had the opportunity to use a laptop, that had been bought in by a member of staff. She showed great interest in the laptop and was able, with some support to type her name and she was thrilled at being able to achieve this.

Members agreed that this was a fantastic, long running project that had supported those with leaning difficulties for many years.

The Vice-Chairman thanked Ms McElroy, Ms Wire and Ms Worrall for their presentation.

#### 69 GRANTS AND COMMUNITY UPDATE

Prior to any discussion regarding Hitchin Educational Foundation, Councillor Paul Clark declared a declarable interest as he was the Council's representative on this body. As there was no decision to be made in respect of this organisation, he would remain in the room and take part in any debate.

The Communities Officer presented the report of the Communities Manage entitled Grants and Community Update and drew attention to the following:

#### Hitchin Stroke Group

Thanks to the generous grant award by this Committee, the Communities Officer was able to gain the support of the local Rotarians, who had agreed to provide the design and printing of new leaflets and posters to advertise the group.

Also, following a meeting, NHCVS were helping the group with a recruitment drive for volunteers.

The group would now be more sustainable for the future.

#### Funding Advice

There had been a number of groups that NHDC had been unable to help with grant funding, due to the grant criteria, however the Communities Officer had signposted them to their County Councillor, who had provided some funding from their Locality Budget.

# **Community Facilities Grant Panel**

The Panel had held a meeting in January and there were two community facilities in Hitchin that the Panel had recommended grant funding be awarded to.

The recommendation of the Panel would be considered by the Deputy Chief Executive, who would make the final decision.

# **Budgets and Grant Funding**

There had been a large amount carried forward from the 2016/17 budget, therefore 2017/18 budget had only stated to be used at the last meeting.

Following the grant awards this evening the remaining balance was £11,131 and the Communities Officer suggested that Members might like to allocate this sum to Community Initiatives.

Members noted that the 2018/19 budget had been reduced by 30 percent.

Councillor Billing informed Members that the County Councillor's Locality Budgets had been reduced by 50 percent in 2016/17 and that County Councillors could not carry forward any funds to the following year.

She observed that, due to the reduced funding, some County Councillors had been more careful in allocating funds and therefore had not spent all of their allocation.

Councillor Billing reminded Members that, groups and projects in the area could apply for grant funding from their County Councillors and information regarding this could be found on the Hertfordshire County Council website.

The Communities Officer advised that often the effect of budget cuts was that the community thought that there was no longer any money available and asked Councillors to encourage groups to put in funding applications.

The Chairman agreed, as an exception, to allow a member of the public to address the Committee.

Mr Doggett suggested that there should be a forum where all organisations that had grant funds available could share their criteria, that in turn would help grant funding organisations signpost applicants to funding sources.

The Communities Office advised that she did work closely with other grant funders, however she would investigate the possibility of organising a forum for grant funders in the Hitchin area.

# **RESOLVED:**

- (1) That the budgetary expenditure, balances and carry forwards from the Development Ward Budgets as set out in Appendix A Hitchin Area Committee Budget for 2017/18 be noted:
- (2) That the sum of £11,131 be allocated from the 2017/18 Discretionary Budget to Community Initiatives;
- (3) That the Communities Officer be requested to investigate the possibility of organising a forum for grant funders in the Hitch9n area;
- (4) That the Committee endorses the actions taken by the Community Officer to promote greater community capacity and well-being for Hitchin;

**REASON FOR DECISION:** To keep Members of the Committee apprised of the latest developments in community activities in Hitchin.

#### 70 GRANT APPLICATION - TILEHOUSE COUNSELLING

The Communities Officer reminded Members that Sue Barnes had been due to give a presentation this evening but had been unable to attend as she had broken her ankle.

The report contained sufficient information for the Committee to make a decision and she asked that they consider the grant in Ms Banes' absence.

Many years ago Tilehouse Counselling had a Service Level Agreement with the Council, but they had not received any funding since 2003.

A Member noted that there were many different counselling services in Hitchin and that a number of these had requested grant funding in the past. He queried whether there was any overlap in the types of counselling offered and whether these services could be defined and explained for Councillors at some point in the future.

The Communities Officer advised that, to her recollection only one other counselling service had applied for grant funding from this Committee and that was a drug and alcohol service.

Tilehouse Counselling specialised in counselling for children and young people at either discounted rates or for free.

A Member noted that the varying styles of counselling were needed as the NHS could not meet the demands for adult and children's mental health provision and domestic abuse was an issue that needed support. Tilehouse Counselling was one of the services that helped support women and young people with mental health issues.

Members queried whether all of the clients at Tilehouse Counselling came from Hitchin.

The Communities Officer advised that the majority of clients were from Hitchin.

Members noted that funding was requested to provide a new service that was required to meet a need.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- (1) That grant funding of £4,964 be awarded to Tilehouse Counselling from the 2017/18 Discretionary Budget towards the cost of providing weekly one to one counselling sessions for individuals with mental health issues.
- (2) That the Communities Officer be requested to provide a list of counselling services available in Hitchin together with the type of service provided by each organisation.

**REASON FOR DECISION**: To improve services provided by local organisations and groups which are accessed by the community.

#### 71 GRANT APPLICATION - TRIANGLE COMMUNIY GARDEN

The Communities Officer reminded Members that the Triangle Community Garden was extending services by improving Ransoms Pavilion and purchasing IT equipment.

They worked closely with the NHDC Parks and Open Spaces team who supported the project and the application for grant funding.

**RESOLVED:** That grant funding of £2,850 be awarded to Triangle Community Garden from the 2017/18 Discretionary Budget towards the cost of purchasing IT equipment, a mobile phone and internal decoration and wi-fi for the Ransom Pavilion.

**REASON FOR DECISION**: To improve services provided by local organisations and groups which are accessed by the community.

#### 72 INFORMATION NOTE - REGENERATION OF CHURCHGATE SHOPPING CENTRE

The Committee received an information note of the Deputy Executive regarding the regeneration of Churchgate Shopping Centre.

Members were concerned that the Hitchin Committee had not been consulted regarding this project and that they had only received an information note rather than proper consultation.

They also felt that the comments made by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in regard to the management of larger projects regarding meaningful consultation should be reinforced.

Members noted that the report mention refurbishment of the steps and wished to ensure that the Deputy Chief Executive was made aware of the historic nature of the steps leading from Churchgate Shopping Centre and that they should be preserved in any plans for upgrading the Centre.

Members wished to make clear that they looked forward to a good working relationship with Cabinet regarding this project.

In respect of the Market and the presentation made by Hitchin Markets Limited, Members wished to make clear that they looked favourably on the proposal for a rolling contract for Hitchin Markets Limited to continue to manage the market.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- (1) That the Deputy Chief Executive be requested to make note of the historic steps leading from Churchgate Shopping Centre to the car park, which should be preserved in any plans for upgrading the Centre;
- (2) That the information note regarding the regeneration of Churchgate Shopping Centre be noted and that the Hitchin Committee look forward to a good working relationship with Cabinet regarding the project;
- (3) That the Hitchin Committee looks favourably on the proposal for a rolling contract for Hitchin Markets Limited to continue managing the market;
- (4) That the comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, in respect of the management of lager projects, regarding meaningful consultation be reinforced.

**REASON FOR DECISION:** To keep the Hitchin Committee appraised of the proposals regarding the regeneration of Churchgate Shopping Centre.

#### 73 SECTION 106 AND UNILATERAL UNDERTAKINGS

The Development and Conservation Manager presented the report entitled Section 106 and Unilateral Undertakings and drew attention to the following;

On Monday the government published a draft new version of the National Planning Policy Framework which is now out for consultation.

This was a consultation document and it did not replace the current National Planning Policy Framework, which was published in 2012.

In general having briefly looked at the new draft it was very similar to the existing NPPF but with more emphasis on the importance of housing delivery.

On the issue of planning obligations and Section 106 there was very little to report.

In terms of planning policies the draft NPPF stated in paragraph 34 that:

"Plans, meaning Local Plans, should set out the contributions expected in association with particular sites and types of development. This should include setting out the levels and types of affordable housing provision required, along with other infrastructure (such as that needed for education, health, transport, green and digital infrastructure). Such policies should not make development unviable, and should be supported by evidence to demonstrate this. Plans should also set out any circumstances in which further viability assessment may be required in determining individual applications."

This was the only paragraph which referred to what should be put in the Local Plan regarding planning contributions.

Members should be aware that the current Supplementary Planning Document regarding Section 106 was 12 yeas old and this would be updated after the NHDC Local Plan had been though the examination.

In respect of development management decisions on individual planning applications the draft NPPF maintained the strict tests on the use of planning obligations set out in the existing NPPF and also set out in the report at Paragraph 8.1.1, which was that planning obligations should only be used when they are;

- a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
- b) directly related to the development; and
- c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

On the much publicised matter of stopping developers getting away with avoiding their obligations, particularly on affordable housing, in his view the NPPF was quite weak, particularly when you consider that Ministers have been stating that developers will now be forced to deliver the necessary infrastructure and obligations.

Paragraph 58 of the draft NPPF stated:

"Where proposals for development accord with all the relevant policies in an up-to-date development plan, no viability assessment should be required to accompany the application.

Where a viability assessment is needed, it should reflect the recommended approach in national planning guidance, including standardised inputs, and should be made publicly available."

This meant that developers would no longer be able to label viability tests as confidential.

It then referred to the National Planning Practice Guidance which included details of standardised viability appraisals. The idea behind this was to standardise how viability appraisals are calculated in order to try and de-mystify the process and prevent sharp practices whereby developers pull the wool over the eyes of planning authorities and claim poverty to avoid meeting their obligations.

However even with a standardised approach, it would not avoid disagreements between what a planning authority wanted a developer to deliver and what they claimed the development can afford. With the continued emphasis on the need to deliver new homes, the Development and Conservation Manager could not see there being much shift of emphasis away from the interests of developers towards sometimes costly community infrastructure.

Disappointingly there was no reference to any consideration of removing the rule of five pooling limit which is referred to in Paragraph 8.2.1 of the report.

Also with the same tests set out in the existing NPPF there was no suggestion of a move back to the tariff approach, which NHDC adopted between 2006 and around 2014.

This meant that new financial contributions through Section 106 obligations could only be spent on projects identified in advance and specified within the legal agreement at the time that planning permission was granted.

If this Council wanted to revert back to a more general tariff approach, a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) would need to be adopted in the future.

The Development and Conservation Manager expressed concern that the Council had not yet identified how they wanted the lager development areas, identified in the Local Plan, to function and how services would be funded or who would operate them. The current thinking was that the Council did not wish to adopt play areas and open spaces, due to the cost implications associated with maintaining them.

Members considered that identifying projects and infrastructure needs in the legal agreement for developments was probably a good idea, as the pooling limits imposed meant that current arrangements made it difficult to fund an entire project, although this would mean that there was no longer any money to fund projects that had not been identified at that stage.

They noted that up to 50 percent of development in North Herts had been of applications for less than 10 dwellings, which meant that no contributions had been received regarding these developments and queried whether local authorities could have a dual system of both Section 106 obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy and whether the policy of no contributions required for developments of less than 10 dwellings could be removed.

The Development and Conservation Manager advised that if NHDC adopted a Community Infrastructure Levy it could be levied on nearly all developments including those of less than 10 dwellings.

Section 106 and CIL could not both be used for the same development, however it was possible to mix and match and the most likely scenario would be that for strategic sites a Section 106 regime would be applied and for the small developments a CIL would be levied.

It was really important that consideration be given to how NHDC could get the best out of Section 106 agreements.

Members noted that there was a significant amount of Section 106 funding that had not been spent and queried why it had not been spent and whether there were any funds would have to be repaid if not spent.

The Development and Conservation Manager advised that most of the monies held in Section 106 contributions were for specific projects, many of which were affordable housing.

In respect of spending time limits, in most instances the time limit was 10 years

Members noted that there was a lot of money available for sustainable transport and monies available to spend on the public realm and queried whether close links should be made with the County Council regarding sustainable transport needs and what the funds identified for public realm could be spent on.

The Development and Conservation Manager advised that the monies could not be spent on the basics of a project, but had to bring additionality to an existing project. Section 106 monies could only be spent on infrastructure and could not be used for on-going running costs.

The Communities Officer advised that In respect of sustainable transport, a project was being worked on to consider installing bicycle racks in schools and community centres and around the Town Centre of Hitchin to encourage people to cycle.

Members queried why NHDC had not adopted a CIL regime as yet and asked for clarification that negotiating for Section 106 contributions was not as precise as the calculations used for CIL.

The Development and Conservation Manager advised that the CIL regulations had not remained stable and that NHDC had chosen not to adopt a regime that may change dramatically. Also, despite the fact that most of the monies collected would be for County

Council obligations, the District Council had the obligation to administer the system, which had cost implications.

Section 106 agreements required an eligible project to be identified and costed in advance and if a project that related to the tests could not be identified no money at all could be collected.

Members noted that a lot of individual and small developments had occurred in Hitchin and asked that this information be provided to Hitchin Councillors.

Members asked whether Section 106 funding could be used to replace play equipment in the play areas that had been identified by the Council for the equipment to be removed.

The Development and Conservation Manager advised that Section 106 funding was intended to enhance infrastructure in order to offset demand by the residents of any new development and there were regulations that governed any spend.

Officers viewed these regulations as broadly as possible, but in the case of play areas, replacing equipment could not be viewed as increasing the capacity of that facility.

Members queried how this Committee could make its views known in respect of policy regarding the choices to make regarding issues such as the introduction of CIL.

The Development and Conservation Manager stated that the Local Plan only addressed these issues at a high level and the Council had to make decisions regarding the more detailed issues such as whether the Council should adopt play areas, when only 10 years' worth of maintenance costs was provided by the developer and whether private companies should be entrusted with the maintenance of green spaces.

Members felt that NHDC did not capitalise on asking for or spending Section 106 funding by identifying projects and this was not helped by the limit of five pooling rule and the fact that interest on these funds were taken into the general fund.

Members were concerned that Section 106 funding could be used for the Churchgate project without reference to the Hitchin Committee and asked that, if this was a consideration, this Committee be consulted before the decision was made.

Members asked to have input into the plan for the proposed Highover Farm development prior to the application being considered by the Planning Control Committee and queried whether doing so would affect the ability of Members of the Planning Control Committee to take part in any decision regarding the application.

The Development and Control Manage advised that he had previously provided advice regarding this issue and would arrange for this advice to be re-circulated to Members.

# RESOLVED:

- (1) That the report entitled Section 106 and Unilateral Undertakings be noted:
- (2) That the Development and Conservation Manager be requested to continue to present a report regarding Section 106 and Unilateral Undertakings on an annual basis;
- (3) That, other than where a contribution has been negotiated for a specific purpose or project, Ward Members of the area where Section 106 or Unilateral Undertaking funding is generated and the Area Committee be consulted prior to funding being allocated away from that area or from a village location to a town;

- (4) That, if it is proposed that Section 106 funding be allocated to the proposed regeneration of Churchgate Shopping Centre project, the Hitchin Committee be advised in advance of the decision to do so:
- (5) That the Committee and Member Services Officer be requested to re-circulate the response of the Development and Conservation Manager regarding the involvement of the Hitchin Committee in the proposed development at Highover Farm to all Members of the Committee.
- (6) That the Development and Conservation Manager be requested to provide information regarding the amount of housing provided in Hitchin to the Committee and Member Services Officer, for circulation by email to all Members of the Hitchin Committee.

#### **REASON FOR DECISION:**

- (1) To ensure that there is a robust system for negotiating and managing Section 106 and Unilateral Undertakings.
- (2) To ensure that this is kept under constant review and that the risk associated with this activity is managed in an appropriate manner.

#### 74 HITCHIN TOWN CENTRE MANAGER

Mr Keith Hoskins, Hitchin Town Centre Manager, thanked the Vice-Chairman for the opportunity to address the Committee. He introduced the new Hitchin BID Manager and gave a verbal presentation regarding the issues and activities in Hitchin Town Centre as follows:

# Sun Street

Most of the people turning right at the end of Sun Street were those working at Hitchin Priory.

It may be a good idea to send a note to the company that they could circulate to their employees.

#### Bid Rangers

The BID rangers did a marvellous job and they were instrumental in enabling a serial purse snatcher to be apprehended.

Mr Hoskins wished to thank the BID Ranges for their efforts in clearing the snow from the pavements.

# Funding of Hitchin BID and Initiative

The policy made by the NHDC that they could no longer fund projects bought forward by Hitchin BID or Hitchin Initiative was very frustrating and unclear.

Hitchin Initiative now had a Public Realm Group that would welcome funding for projects and seed funding could lead to other funding being secured.

#### The Dell

This project was still moving forward with negotiations currently taking place regarding covenant insurance.

The Council had decided that this was the best way forward as, although they had consent from one member of the Gainsford family to continue with the project, consent was required from all of the members of the family.

Covenant insurance would provide an indemnity should anybody object.

They had met with the Executive Member for Leisure and the Parks and Countryside Development Manager at the Dell, both of whom were incredibly enthusiastic.

#### The Station

A meeting was held with County Councillors and the MP to look at access to the London bound platform and what could be done with the site formerly occupied by the Aggregates.

Work regarding this would continue.

#### **Commercial Issues**

There were currently some high-profile voids in the Town Centre; however this was no more than the natural churn after Christmas.

Many of these voids wee at some stage of offer, although it should be noted that this process took some time.

#### **BID Manager**

Mr Hoskins introduced Mr Tom Hardy who was the newly appointed Hitchin BID Manager.

Mr Hardy informed Members that, prior to coming to Hitchin, he had been the Letchworth BID Manager for over two years.

He advised that Hitchin BID was heading into the renewal process when all of the business in the BID area would get an opportunity to vote on the new 5-year Business Plan which would begin April 2019. This vote would be held between 2 November 2018 and 4 December 2018.

They were currently considering the changing needs of the Town over the next 5 years including issues such as:

- How technology could be used to get people into the Town;
- How could the Night-time Marshalls be better used and directed to key areas of the Town;
- How events, that showcased the Town, could be improved;
- Considering the marketing strategy such as increasing website presence and the use of social media;
- Ways to promote Hitchin Town Centre as a tourist attraction and encourage people from outside of the area to visit Hitchin;
- Considering offering accredited training such as first aid and fire marshall training, window displays and marketing courses at a discount.

The businesses, which would be paying the BID levy, would then be asked what they would like to see in their Plan.

The BID had been very successful at "business as usual" including:

- BID Rangers, who worked really hard and were the eyes and ears of the BID and Town Centre;
- Night-time Marshalls who were becoming more and more important;
- Events such as the Christmas Light Switch On and the Hitchin Food Festival;
- Street cleaning, with chewing gum removal being arranged this year, thanks to County Councillor Locality Budget funding;
- Cardboard recycling, which was now used by over 200 businesses, saving them money.

They were currently tendering for the Town Centre floral displays and considering where these could be best placed as well as looking at the Christmas lights and the associated switch on event.

There would be a meet and greet the new BID Manager event at Osinskys on 15 March 2018 from 12.00 to 15.00 and 1600 to 1900 and all Councillors were welcome to attend.

The Vice-Chairman thanked Mr Hoskins and Mr Hardy for their presentation.

#### RESOLVED:

- (1) That Mr Keith Hoskins be thanked for the hard work on behalf of Hitchin that he has undertaken as Hitchin Town Centre Manager;
- (2) That Mr Tom Hardy be welcomed as the new Hitchin BID Manager.

**REASON FOR DECISION:** To keep the Hitchin Committee apprised of the work and activities being undertaken in Hitchin Town Centre.

# 75 WARD MATTERS AND OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS - MEMBERS' REPORTS

No Ward or Outside Organisation issues were discussed.

#### 76 ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AT FUTURE MEETINGS

The Vice - Chairman advised that it had been suggested that Hitchin Committee may like to consider having a permanent meeting venue for the coming Civic Year.

Following a brief discussion Members agreed that meetings should alternate, where possible, between Benslow Music School and Westmill Community Centre.

The Chairman advised that there was a comprehensive list of items for discussion at future meetings and suggested that this list be circulated to Members and that, in the new Civic Year, Members consider the priority that items be discussed also if Members wished to add any further subjects to the list to contact the Committee and Members Services Officer.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- (1) That the Committee and Member Services Officer be requested to circulate to all Members of the Hitchin Committee by email the list of topics to be discussed at future meetings of the Hitchin Committee;
- (2) That the Committee and Member Services Officer be requested to organise the meetings of the Hitchin Committee to be held at either Benslow Music School or Westmill Community Centre.

**REASON FOR DECISION:** To ensure that future meetings and agendas of the Hitchin Committee are organised efficiently.

The meeting closed at 9.48 pm

Chairman

#### NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

#### HITCHIN COMMITTEE

# MEETING HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL OFFICES, GERNON ROAD, LETCHWORTH GARDEN CITY ON THURSDAY, 17TH MAY, 2018 AT 7.51 PM

#### **MINUTES**

Present: Councillors Ian Albert, Clare Billing Judi Billing, Paul Clark, Sam Collins,

Elizabeth Dennis-Harburg, Nicola Harris, Simon Harwood,

Mike Hughson, Bernard Lovewell and Martin Stears-Handscomb.

# 1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Val Bryant and Richard Thake.

#### 2 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN

**RESOLVED:** That Councillor Ian Albert be appointed as Chairman of the Hitchin Committee for the 2018/2019 Civic Year.

#### 3 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN

**RESOLVED:** That Councillor Clare Billing be appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Hitchin Committee for the 2018/2019 Civic Year.

The meeting closed at 7.52 pm

Chairman



# HITCHIN COMMITTEE 5 JUNE 2018

#### \*PART 1 - PUBLIC DOCUMENT

#### TITLE OF REPORT: GRANTS & COMMUNITY UPDATE

REPORT OF THE COMMUNITIES MANAGER

EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND RURAL AFFAIRS

PRIORITY: ATTRACTIVE AND THRIVING / PROSPER AND PROTECT / RESPONSIVE AND EFFICIENT

#### 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- 1.1 To advise the Committee on the current expenditure and balances of the Area Committee budgets.
- 1.2 To bring to the Committee's attention details of recent requests received for Area Committee Grant Funding, made by community groups and local organisations.
- 1.3 To advise the Committee of the activities and schemes with which the Community Officer has been involved.
- 1.4 To bring to the Committee's attention some important community based activities that will take place during the next few months.

#### 2. RECOMMENDATIONS

- 2.1 That the Committee considers allocating funding from their discretionary community budget towards the projects below:
- 2.1.1 £1,500 11<sup>th</sup> Hitchin (Holy Saviour) Guides towards summer activities, outings and equipment as outlined in 8.1.1
- 2.1.2 £1,320 to British Schools Museum for essential roof maintenance as outlined in 8.1.2
- 2.1.3 £1,500 to Headway who are requesting £3,750 towards the cost of therapy Sessions as outlined in 8.1.3
- 2.1.4 £2,500 to Hitchin Christian Centre to provide debt centre, job club and life skills training as outlined in 8.1.4
- 2.1.5 £1000 to Hitchin Rugby Club to set up their own arm of the JOCA. As outlined in 8.1.5

- 2.1.6 £3,756 to Rhythms of the World towards a one day community event as outlined in 8.1.6
- 2.2 That the Committee endorses the actions taken by the Community Officer to promote greater community capacity and well-being for Hitchin.

#### 3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

- 3.1 To ensure the Committee is kept informed of the work of the Community Officer.
- 3.2 This report is intended to inform Members of the financial resources available to the Committee. It draws attention to the current budgetary situation by assisting in the effective financial management of the Area Committee's budget. This ensures that all actions are performed in line with the Authority's Financial Regulations, the Council's Constitution, and the guidance of the existing Grants policy as agreed by Cabinet in June 2016.
- 3.3 The awarding of financial assistance to voluntary organisations and the use of discretionary spending allows the Committee to further the aims of the Corporate Plan.

#### 4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 There are no alternative options being proposed other than those detailed within the text of this report. However in the course of debate at committee, Members may wish to comment and offer additional views on any of the items included within this report.

# 5. CONSULTATION WITH RELEVANT MEMBERS AND EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

- 5.1 Consultation with Members has occurred in connection with the allocation of funds for Community Projects
- 5.2 Consultation with the respective officers and external bodies/groups has taken place with regard to funding proposals for Area Committee Funds.

# 6. FORWARD PLAN

6.1 This report does not contain a recommendation on a key decision and has not been referred to in the Forward Plan.

#### 7. BACKGROUND

7.1 Members are asked to note the information detailed in Appendix A Hitchin Area Committee Budget Spread sheet, which relates to the Area Committee budget balances for 2018/19.

7.2 The spreadsheet also details pre-allocated sums carried forward from the previous financial years, including balances and past expenditure relating to the allocated and unallocated Area Capital Visioning Budgets available to the Committee.

#### 8. RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS

# 8.1 **Grant Applications**

# 8.1.1 11th Hitchin (Holy Saviour) Guides

11th Hitchin (Holy Saviours) Guides are a registered charity that empowers the girls to experience life-changing adventures, to achieve their potential, make a difference and to be their best.

They are seeking funds to enable all the Guides to have the opportunity to take part in all activities on offer. They are requesting a total of £1500 which towards the cost of summer activities, outings and equipment.

# 8.1.2 British Schools Museum

The British Schools Museum is a registered charity who welcomes visitors from the community and disadvantaged groups.

They are looking to complete essential maintenance of the roof, there are many loose tiles which are a health and safety hazard and this is causing leaks to the roof meaning that they have had to cancel group meetings. They have requested £1,320 to contribute to the cost of these works.

Renovating the roof will provide a safe environment for all visitors of the museum and preserve the conservation of the listed building. The work will ensure longevity of the roof and enable the museum to continue working with the local community protecting the physical heritage environment.

#### 8.1.3 Headway

Headway is a registered charity that provides support and care for those affected by a brain injury. They support carers to understand the effects of a brain injury through therapeutic and peer support activities. At present Headway is the only organisation locally that focuses directly on individuals affected by a brain injury.

The annual cost of providing services is £20k Headway is aiming to cover 50% the costs of therapeutic and peer support activities. They have applied for £6,000 from Letchworth Garden City Heritage Foundation and £4000 from the Peoples Post Code Lottery fund.

The organisations have requested a total of £10,000 from North Hertfordshire District Council to go towards the cost of these sessions for those affected by a brain injury. The service supports people from Hitchin, Letchworth & Baldock. The £10k has been divided by per capita percentage between the three Area Committees £3,750 from both Letchworth and Hitchin and £2500 from Baldock. However, each Committee will be at liberty to contribute to the over all amount as they see fit.

There is a need to support a highly vulnerable group of people affected by a brain injury, to enable them to reach their potential. Running the project will enable those individuals to return to meaningful activity, reducing social isolation and enable them to rebuild their confidence.

#### 8.1.4 Hitchin Christian Centre

Hitchin Christian Centre is a registered charity that works with the community to provide employability support. They run a debt centre, job club and life skills courses aimed at disadvantaged, low income families and individuals needing support with securing and locating suitable employment. Individuals looking to learn new life skills will have the opportunity through the support of the staff and volunteers.

They are requesting a total of £2,500 which will be put towards the operational costs which includes all staff and volunteer training.

#### 8.1.5 Hitchin Rugby Club - JOCA Hitchin

Following the successful implantation at Welwyn Rugby Club, Hitchin have taken up the challenge to set up their own arm of the JOCA charity (Just one Click Away). The service is made available via volunteers to act as a first point of contact for club members who may be struggling with a variety of challenges (all of which can impact mental health)

JOCA is a welfare committee dedicated to promoting and ensuring pastoral care and general well-being for all members of the club. The aim will be to nurture a culture within the club where peers will talk to each other, and support each other rather than bottle things up and allow them to get out of control. "It isn't a weakness to need a friendly ear (even if you're a bloke). We start this with our minis buddy system and promote this ethos right from 7 to 70 across the club"

The funding is required to support the launch and implantation of JOCA at Hitchin rugby club. This will involve promotional material, training (spotting the signs) for their responders

They are requesting a total of £1000 to set up their own JOCA Charity (Just one Click away). The service is made available via volunteers to act as a first point of contact for club members who may be struggling with a variety of challenges.

#### 8.1.6 ROTW

Rhythms of the World are a registered charity run by volunteers providing an opportunity for the local community to organise and participate in events that celebrate culture and the arts.

They plan to have a day of music and arts in the Market Square, St Mary's Church and High Street on Saturday 11<sup>th</sup> August from 11:30 until 20:00. The total cost of putting on this event is estimated to be in the region of £10k.

The ROTW committee are seeking local business sponsorship up to a total of £3,000, they have £600 from donations and £1,590 from the charitiy's reserves. They, will be raising a further £600 from ticketed events at Club 85 and hope the generate £750 profit on pitch fees for stalls on the day.

They are requesting £3,756 from the Hitchin Area Committee to make up the shortfall.

# 8.2 Update on Previous Grants awarded and Community Engagement

### 8.2.1 Grants awarded to groups who provide Counselling services

At the request of Cllr Simon Harwood at the last meeting of the Hitchin Area Committee on 6<sup>th</sup> March 2017 (*Minutes of meeting held 06.03.18 item 60 (2)*) outlined below is a list of organisations providing a counselling service that have received funding from Area Committee budgets in the last 2 years.

- Tilehouse counselling received £4,964 in March 18
- Hitchin Stroke Group received £2,000 December 2017
- Living room Hertfordshire received £2500 in March 17
- Resolve Drug and Alcohol counselling Received £1,274 December 16
- Hitchin Counselling Service received £2,700 April 16
- Herts Young Carers £2,706 April 16
- Family Matters received £931.00 March 16 and £1,230 in July 2017
- Mind In Mid Herts January £1,040 January 2016

#### 8.2.2 Family Matters

Family Matters were awarded £1,230 at the Hitchin Area Committee meeting in June 2017.

Some of this funding was used during the summer period last year to subsidise the cost of outings and activities for disadvantaged parents and their children. This year the group will use the remainder of the funding and have a wide range of experiences and trips planned for the families that attend the weekly group.

#### These include:

- games and activities in Bancroft Park with free refreshments
- Family Matters Little Fishes Fun Swim sessions at Hitchin Indoor Swimming Pool.
- healthy eating fun food tastings, at Oughton Children's Centre where parents, carer's and children all prepare lunches, snacks, smoothies to sit together at the end of the session and enjoy together.
- Sing & Sign and Music & Movement sessions also through the summer. All sessions are open to families with under and over fives so the whole family can join in the fun. Parents, Dads, Grandparents and any Carer's are most welcome to come along.

Charmaine Rogers who coordinates the group informed the Communities officer,

"Everyone at Family Matter's very much appreciate the ongoing support and encouragement from The Area Committee without this invaluable support I would not be in a position financially within Family Matter's to be able to offer the very deserving, often hard to reach young families in Hitchin and surrounding villages, this programme of diverse, stimulating, fun activities.

"We will be offering any families living in rural areas or any family within Hitchin transport too and from the group."

# 8.2.3 Community Facilities

The lease agreement with the Walsworth Community Centre has now been agreed. Work is underway to renovate the building and funding from the Community Facilities Capital Grant is being released in phases as each part of the project is undertaken.

The North Herts Minority Ethnic Forum have met all the conditions placed on the Grant awarded to them for the extension on the building. One of these was that planning permission should be in place; this had now been gained with out any issues. The other was to ensure that they had a long enough lease on the building from Howard Cottage Housing Association, which also proved not to be an issue. Officers from the Communities Team are meeting with the group to discuss the project and funding will be released in increments when the work commences.

# 8.2.4 Section 106 funding

Prior to 2016 Section 106 funds were collected from developers from information supplied by officers in Planning there are the following amount available for suitable capital projects under each heading:

 Leisure:
 £37,212.30

 Pitch Sports:
 £6,142.49

 Play Space:
 £4,016.25

 Public Realm:
 £9952.18

 Sustainable Transport:
 £122,035.88

If members have suggestions for projects that these amounts might be used for please contact the Communities Officer to investigate further possibilities.

The Communities Team are also collating any future requirements in terms of capital funds to support larger scale community needs. These will be communicated to planning officers to assist when negotiating any new unilateral undertakings with prospective developers. If members have any suggestions of suitable projects or requirements within their wards please inform the Communities Officer.

#### 8.2.5 Update on information requested regarding Churchgate

The discussion in regard to the proposed Churchgate renovations at the last meeting held on 6<sup>th</sup> March 2018 has been brought to the attention of the Deputy Chief Executive and he has confirmed that officers are fully aware of the steps that lead from the riverside up to St Mary's Square and the inscription on them.

# 8.3 **Highways Matters**

- 8.3.1 This section is included within the community update report for each committee cycle to facilitate debate and enable appropriate feedback on any of the proposed or listed Highways related schemes.
- 8.3.2 Any new proposals or revised schemes will be forwarded to the respective Herts County Councillor for consideration who will in turn report back and advise the Committee accordingly.

#### 9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

- 9.1 The Area Committees also have delegated power under section 9.8.1 (a) & (b) to allocate discretionary budgets and devolved budgets within the terms determined by the Council and outlined in the current Grant Policy agreed by Cabinet in June 2016. Section 9.8.2 (g) of the Constitution in respect of Area Committees' Terms of Reference provides that they may: "establish and maintain relationships with outside bodies/voluntary organisations operating specifically with the area including, where appropriate, the provision of discretionary grant aid/financial support etc. but excluding grants for district-wide activities",
- 9.2 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 (S1-8) provides a General Power of Competence which gives local authorities the powers to do anything provided that it is not specifically prohibited in legislation:-
  - An individual may generally do
  - Anywhere in the UK or elsewhere
  - For a commercial purpose or otherwise, for a charge or without a charge
  - Without the need to demonstrate that it will benefit the authority, its area or person's resident or present in its area.
- 9.3 Section 137 Local Government Act 1972 provides specific authority for the Council to incur expenditure on anything which is in the interests of and will bring direct benefit to its area. This includes a charity or other body operating for public service.

#### 10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

- 10.1 As outlined in Appendix A Committee budget 2018/19:The agreed budget for this financial year is £13,700. In addition to £13,131 carried forward from 2017/18 equates to a total amount of £26,831 for the provision of Community Development Grants. It is suggested that any funds allocated use the 2017/18 funding in the first instance.
- 10.2 Should Members be minded to provide grant funding as requested under recommendation 2.1 the total awarded will equate to £13,826. This would leave an amount of £13,005 to allocate prior to the end of the financial year.
- 10.3 The Capital Visioning funds are now all been drawn down and utilised for redevelopment projects in Bancroft Gardens.

#### 11. RISK IMPLICATIONS

11.1 There are no relevant risk entries that have been recorded on Pentana Performance, the Council's performance and risk system. Individual events should have their own risk assessments in place to mitigate any health and safety issues. Whenever a request for grant funding for equipment is received, the recipient of the funding will be advised to obtain insurance for the item to avoid a repeat request for funding in the event of the equipment being stolen or damaged. There are no pertinent risk implications for the Authority associated with any items within this report.

#### 12. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

- 12.1 In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty, public bodies must, in the exercise of their functions, give due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between those who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
- 12.2 Area committee funding is awarded to community groups that clearly demonstrate positive impact on the community and wider environment. The projects outlined in this report seek to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations.

#### 13. SOCIAL VALUE IMPLICATIONS

13.1 The Social Value Act and "go local" policy do not apply to this report.

#### 14. HUMAN RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

14.1 There are no pertinent Human Resource implications associated with any items within this report.

# 15. APPENDICES

15.1 Appendix A - 2018/19 financial year budget sheet

#### 16. CONTACT OFFICERS

16.1 Author: Claire Morgan, Senior Community Development Officer

Email: claire.morgan@north-herts.gov.uk

16.2 Contributors: Anne Miller, Assistant Accountant

Email: anne.miller@north-herts.gov.uk

Kerry Shorrocks, Corporate Human Resources Manager

Email: Kerry.shorrocks@north-herts.gov.uk

Tim Everitt, Performance & Risk Officer Email: tim.everitt@north-herts.gov.uk

Reuben Ayavoo, Senior Policy Officer Email: reuben.ayavoo@north-herts.gov.uk

Simon Ellis, Planning Control & Conservation Manager

Email: simon.ellis@north-herts.gov.uk

Jeanette Thompson, Service Director - Legal & Community

Email: <u>Jeanette.thompson@north-herts.gov.uk</u>

# 17. BACKGROUND PAPERS

- 17.1 Review of Policies and Procedures for Financial Assistance to Voluntary and Community Organisations, November 2002.
- 17.2 Review of Grant Policy Cabinet June 2016



Memorandum of Understanding	Funding	Project	Allocated	Date Allocated	Spent	Outstanding	Unallocated Budget	Comments
Pre allocated Funds Brought Forward from 2017/18	£1,403	Revenue Contribution to Bancroft Gardens	£1,403		£0	£1,403		Final retention still to be paid
Total	£1,403		£1,403		£0	£1,403	£0	

DEVELOPMENT BUDGETS								
Central Area Grants	Funding	Project	Allocated	Date Allocated	Spent	Outstanding	Unallocated Budget	Comments
Pre allocated Funds Brought Forward from								
2017/18	£13,131							
Total	£13,131		£0		£0	£0	£13,131	

<b>DEVELOPMENT BUDGETS</b>								
Central Area Grants	Funding	Project	Allocated	Date Allocated	Spent	Outstanding	Unallocated Budget	Comments
Base Budget 2018/19	£13,700							
Total	£13,700		£0		£0	£0	£13,700	